




































































NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the
Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no
event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or
available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated
or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify
services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the
General Provisions, Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are
reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving sarvices under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those
needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the
Transition Plan to the State as requested.
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10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by
another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a
process for uninterfupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition.  The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1 The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

M Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1)) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
4)] Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(9) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

JSI| Research & Training Inst.,Inc, d/b/a Community Health Institute From: To:
(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

Jonathan Stewart, Director
(Name & Title of Authoriz: ontractor Representative)

/ /) (3 13

(Contractof befeserftati\/e Signature) (Date)

\
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Goverﬁment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative -agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

(3) The undersigned shall requirg that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cerification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject

to a civil ?/,qf not less.than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.
/ / o /tl//[, L//L% g)/é LUce 4 A/V&z" ﬁm
(

Contractér F{e;{i vntaﬁive Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
rol ,

JS7 d/b /a o, b Slal?h lpst bds '2/2/ 3
( ,

(Contractor Name) Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initialszm‘
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services' (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

"o "o »our "o

The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exciuded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: ;(Z i

Standard Exhibit F —
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1

)

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exctuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b} have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (l)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: z : ;
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

%/f/ \759’/’45‘71@17 Sewa £, Divector

Contra/?)r Reﬂre nta ive Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
JS7 L ( {%//mm/ﬁ, / Yot Y A’ S Ai/e / 2//;//.’2
(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initia@

Standard Exhibit F -
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters / ;
January 2009 Date: 2 / \ / }
Page 3 of 3




Page of

NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable

efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

/ 0/"7/32'/7(&” 5%’44/474 /. /:)//é ¢ Lo

i,
[
(Contractor‘Re,{r&eséntatite/ fignature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
{ .

57 Hba [’47/’74/17u/;}/a, SoulSsy, Inc A A s /%//3//3

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Contractor initials:
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act )

January 2009 Date: //')\ 'Il) !/l
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

ERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsibie entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

/ /zfzm Y Aotz 5/&% / Dvsefor

/
(Contractgf R%B_r;ésen@v Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
[

Js7 é/Zéé /3//'14/}71/////&, f/m/ﬂ //lsf//[/// ) / 2//3//3

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor lnitialszggg
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

)]

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term ‘“Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,

TitleXIIL, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initial8»

September 2009
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

. “Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
11. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
I11. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. [f
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
September 2009
Page 4 of 6 Date: '/,Z”/’) (\
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: S Q

September 2009

Page 5 of 6 Date: /2. 1. 1)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

WY DA TSZ df o Covmun it Peat

The State Agency Name Name of the Contractor ///; A fv/ ¢
Signa Authorized Répresentative Signature?t? Aﬁtﬁ?i/zed/ﬁepresentative

/77 /’%ﬁ Cyﬂaﬂﬂ/{ jc’ﬂ AL \711-,(‘2/)7 57[24/4)414 71—

Name of Authorized Representative_// Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

/jﬁﬁ//% / 2// 3/73

4
Date 4 Date
Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initi
September 2009

Page 6 of 6 Date: /7 /1 /5
At



NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accotintapility and Transparency Act.
/ Tondo, ot D
4

(Con/m(R{eLyesLntative Signature) {(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
‘)Sjj J by Chvamon, /t /ka/ t L A (21513
{Contractor Name) {Date)

Contractgr.jnitials:
Date: 71 5. ’;

Page# 2l ofPage#t 37




NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

. FORMA =

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: iq'_’_i‘-f 2a 07
2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,

grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

___No X YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business

or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

NO X_YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: ___ Amount:
Name: ___ Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: _ Amount: ___
Name: Amount:

Contract iit‘I:¢
TS

Date:
Page # 5 { _ofPage# 37




State of Neto Hampshire
Bepartuent of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Community Health Institute is a New Hampshire trade name registered on
March 29, 2007 and that JSIRESEARCH AND TRAINING INSTITUTE, INC. presently
own(s) this trade name. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2™ day of April, A.D. 2013

ey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, Joel H. Lamstein , do hereby certity

that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of JSI Research & Training Institute,
Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of two resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on ___ October 24, 2008

RESOLVED: That the ___ Director

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the __ 15th__ day of _December ,2013___.
4. Jonathan Stewart is the duly elected

Director

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Mermmide b
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this /5 * day of M 20 /5

sy _J0el Lamgre;n

oM

DEBRA L. LOVE, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

Commigsion Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JOHNSNO-01 DMEANEY

DATE (MWDD/YYYY)
11162014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT:

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.
458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382

Name: . Judy Yeary

PHONE  £x:(781) 447-5531 | TA%, no): (781) 447-7230

ADDREss: J Yeary@masoninsure.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Federal Insurance Company 20281
INSURED INSURER B : Executive Risk Indemnity 35181
JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute INSURER C :
:g:’ ifo‘g:‘ Street INSURER D :
Bow, NH 03304 INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR [ADDI

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER (I\':g;'l:llngIYYW (%W} LmiTs
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 35873320 09/09/2013 | 09/09/2014 | DRFASETORERTED o s 1,000,000
] cLamsmane E OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $ 10,000
L PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | $ 1,000,00
L GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,00
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
roricy | |PBE [X]ioc $
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Eaactigenty e oMt T 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO 73546634 09/09/2013 | 09/09/2014 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $ 1,000,000
N ALLOYNED iﬁ.’;‘ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| X | HIRED AUTOS AJTOR "NED (PER ACCIDERT) o s 1,000,000
s
| X | UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,001
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 79861066 09/09/2013 | 09/09/2014 | AGGREGATE $ 10,000,00¢
oeo | X | Rerentions 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN X [ TORY_LIMITS ER
A | ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 71733182 09/09/2013 | 09/09/2014 | £ | ACH ACCIDENT s 500,00
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I:I N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 500,00
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMT | § 500,000
A |Directors & Officers 81595534 09/09/2013 | 09/09/2014 |Gen Agg/Each Occ 3,000,000
B |Errors & Omissions 82120859 09/09/2013 | 09/09/2014 |Gen Agg/Each Occ 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space Is required)

It is understood and agreed that the Department of Health & Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and Families is included as an additional insured as
respects general liability as required by written contract per the terms and conditions of the policy. It is further agreed that named insured includes John
Snow, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute located at 501 South St., Bow, NH 03304

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Services
Division for Children, Youth and Families
1056 North River Road
Manchester, NH 03104

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



JSI Research and Training

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
otganization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Concord, New Hampshire; as well
as seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.

Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute’s mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire’s
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,

statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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PHONE: 781-934-0460

R. FOUGERE, JR. CPA
NORMAN ] FAX: 781-934-0606

99 HERITAGE LANE
DUXBURY, MA 02332-4334

Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. (a Massachusetts non-profit organization) as of September 30, 2012, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The
prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.’s 2011 financial statements, and in our report dated April 10, 2012, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as of September 30, 2012, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 9,
2013 on our consideration of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on



compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
- information has been subiected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.
%@7 « <A

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 9, 2013



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
September 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for 2011)

2012 2011
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,406,589 $ 30,376,741
Receivables for program work:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 72,147 82,270
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 653,636 263,550
Other 1,813,913 1,658,434
Field advances - program 379,372 411,461
Employee advances 92,078 73,816
Total Current Assets 37,417,735 32,866,272
Property and Equipment:
Office furniture and equipment 219,206 219,206
Less: Accumulated depreciation (219,206) (213,516)
Net Property and Equipment - 5,690
Other Assets:
Deposits 44,015 43,545
" TOTAL ASSETS $ 37,461,750 $ 32,915,507
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and payroll withholdings $ 1,857,671 $ 1,910,386
Accrued vacation 979,051 915,939
Advances for program work:
U.S. Agency for Intemational Development 1,919,095 2,497,939
U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services 45,638 18,352
U.S. Dept. of Homeland Security - -
Other 18,611,504 16,166,468
Loans payable 484,718 572,193
Contingencies - -
Total Current Liabilities 23,897,677 22,081,277
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 13,564,073 10,834,230
Total Net Assets 13,564,073 10,834,230
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 37,461,750 $ 32,915,507

See notes to financial statements. 3



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for 2011)

2012 2011
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Public Support and Revenue
Public Support:
Government grants and contracts:
U.S. Government $ 109,963,587 $ 113,359,455
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 4,932,870 4,116,778
Other grants and contracts 30,219,590 28,472,866
Program income 107,143 211,341
Contributions 504,214 1,254,616
In Kind Project Contributions 9,085,542 3,676,017
Interest income 31,542 28,928
Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue 154,844,888 151,120,001
Expenses
Program Services:
International programs 127,894,661 125,569,002
Domestic programs 9,524,715 9,499,017
Total Program Services 137,419,376 135,068,019
Supporting Services:
Management and General 14,695,669 12,832,979
Total Expenses 152,115,045 147,900,998
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 2,729,843 3,219,003
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 10,834,230 7,615,227
Net Assets at End of Year $ 13,564,073 $ 10,834,230

See notes to financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended September 30, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for 2011)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Increase (Decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in receivables for program work
(Increase) Decrease in field advances - program
(Increase) Decrease in employee advances
(Increase) Decrease in deposits
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and

payroll withholdings

Increase (Decrease) in accrued vacation
Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from loans payable
Payments of loans payable

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

See notes to financial statements.

2012 2011
$ 2,729,843 $ 3,219,003
5,690 6,000
(535,442) 772,566
32,089 416,290
(18,262) (18,773)
(470) (10,845)
(52,715) 389,276
63,112 53,564
1,893,478 3,160,370
4,117,323 7,987,451
- (2,904)
; (2,904)
603,542 804,124
~(691,017) (634,320)
(87,475) 169,804
4,029,848 8,154,351
30,376,741 22,222,390
$ 34,406,589 $ 30,376,741




JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (the “Company”) is a not-for-profit corporation. The
Company provides education and research primarily to non-profit health and human service
agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current funding is principally from the United
States Agency for International Development and the United States Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS). The Company was organized on April 11, 1979.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Date of Management’s Review
Subsequent events were evaluated through April 9, 2013, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Method of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements are presented in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS
No. 117, the Company is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted
net assets, and permanently restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor
imposed restrictions. At September 30, 2012, there were no temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made
or the gift is received, whichever is earlier. Revenue from cost reimbursement contracts and
grants is recorded as the related expenditures are incurred.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Contributions

The Company adheres to SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received and
Coniribuiions Made. In accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence
and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Under SFAS No. 116, contributions are required to be
reporied as temporarily restricied support and are then reciassified to unrestricted net assets upon
expiration of the time restriction. Temporarily restricted support, whose restrictions are met in
the same reporting period, are shown as unrestricted support.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in kind project contributions at their estimated
fair market value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying statements of
activities. As required under SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made, donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance
non-financial assets or require specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those

skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Functional Allocation of Expenses ,

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Company is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in the accompanying financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Reccivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a
provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts at
September 30, 2012 was $0.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Property and Equipment

Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $1,500 are capitalized. Property and
equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value
of the respective assets over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets.

Prior Year Comparative Totals

The financial statements include prior-year summarized comparative information in total. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2011, from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassification
Certain amounts for 2011 have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company maintains bank accounts at several banks. Accounts at these institutions are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
during the fiscal year, cash at these institutions exceeded federally insured limits. Management
believes the risk in these situations to be minimal.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

2012

Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Net

Office furniture, and
equipment $ 219,206 $ (219,206) $ -

$ 219,206 5 (219,206) $ -

Depreciation expense was $5,690 for the year ended September 30, 2012.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2012

NOTE 5 - LOANS PAYABLE

Loans payable consist of various unsecured short-term loans, payable on demand, from John
Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 9). No interest is charged on the loans. The loans
payable balance at September 30, 2012 is $484,718.

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the
Company are subject to audit. The Company is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed
costs. Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would
be immaterial.

The Company is a co-borrower of a demand loan with no balance due at September 30, 2012.
Management believes that the co-borrower is current on the loan and that its collateral exceeds
the balance due. (See NOTE 9)

NOTE 7 - SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION

In accordance with The Division of Purchased Services (DPS) Regulation, 808 CMR 1.19 (3), a
provider of human services is allowed to retain a portion of its excess of support and revenue
over expenses in a fiscal year (the “surplus™). A provider may retain as its surplus up to 5% of
total revenue from Massachusetts sources during any fiscal year. In addition, a provider may
retain a cumulative amount of surplus over a period of years not to exceed 20% of the prior
year’s total support and revenue from Massachusetts sources.

The following summarizes the Company’s calculation of the surplus for fiscal year 2012 and on
a cumulative basis:

Surplus Fund Other Fund Total Fund

Balance ‘ Balance Balance
Beginning of Year $ 476,274 $ 10,357,956 $ 10,834,230
Current Year 48,131 2,681,712 2,729,843
End of Year $ 524,405 $ 13,039,668 $ 13,564,073
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2012

NOTE 8 - COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

The following is a schedule of expenditures with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts:

Accrued (deferred) Revenue at October 1, 2011 $ 263,550
Receipts (4,542,784)
Disbursements/expenditures 4,932,870
Accrued (deferred) Revenue at September 30, 2012 $ 653,636

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (an exempt organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-
exempt corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. Mr, Joel Lamstein is
President and Director of both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow, Inc. The
two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill the federal and state governments.
During the year ended September 30, 2012, John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. $11,265,239 for consulting services (technical support). This amount is reflected
under the program services-consulting line item on the statement of functional expenses. In
addition, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. performed consulting services (technical
support) for John Snow, Inc. totaling $9,706,366.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended

-September 30, 2012, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incurred $14,695,668 of overhead
expenses (supporting services), of which $4,192,046 was its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred
costs.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial
demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of November 30, 2012, which
allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security agreement with
a first position lien on all corporate assets of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John
Snow, Inc. including assignment of promissory notes and security documents between the two
companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus
two percent (2.00%) payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2012 was 2.2142%. At
September 30, 2012, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan. Management believes the loan
payable will be extended, when due, under similar terms and conditions.

During the year ended September 30, 2012, John Snow, Inc. made an unrestricted contribution of
$100,000 to the Organization.

1



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2012

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc.

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (PSCM) (an exempt organization) was
incorporated on February 14, 2005 by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management
Sciences for Health, Inc.

PSCM has been awarded a U.S. government contract to procure and deliver life-saving
medicines and medical supplies to treat HIV/AIDS patients worldwide. The contract for the
Supply Chain Management System project was awarded through the U.S. Agency for the
International Development as part of the U.S. government’s five-year, $15 billion President’s

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief,

Mr. Joel Lamstein, President and Director of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., is
President and Director of PSCM.

During the year ended September 30, 2012, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. billed
PSCM $38,424,918 for services performed.

World Education, Inc.

On October 10, 2011, the Board of Directors voted to become the sole member of World
Education, Inc. (an exempt organization) with such powers as are typically accorded to a sole
member including the power of appointment and removal of the World Education, Inc. board of
trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation of World
Education, Inc., and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of
substantial assets of World Education, Inc.

The Company purchased services from World Education, Inc. totaling $1,522,443 that were
charged to sub-contracts expense.

Other

The Company has an agreement with a certain related company to purchase services.
Transactions with this company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation;
40% owned by John Snow, Inc.) $ 721,280

$ 721,280
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2012

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(K) plan covering substantially all its
employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. Employer contributions are based on a
percentage (10% - 15% depending on length of service) of salary. The Plan was effective April
11, 1979. Pension expense was $2,127,961 for the year ended September 30, 2012.

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
The Company leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring from 2013 through
2016. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to 5 years.

During the year ended September 30, 2012, rentals under long-term lease obligations were
$393,077. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company’s long-term leases as of
September 30, 2012 are:

Year Ended
September 30,
2013 $ 331,836
2014 220,932
2015 224,686
2016 132,344
2017 -
Thereafter -

$ 909,798

13



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

September 30, 2012

NOTE 12 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

The Company receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various
departments and agencies of the Federal government and from the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts.

The Company received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for

Income
Received
U.S. Agency for International Development $ 66,510,935
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. 38,424,918

% of

Total Income

$ 104,935,853

NOTE 13 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

42.95%
24.82%

67.77%

The Company receives donated materials and services consisting of commodities, facilities and
equipment, and services for use in its programs from overseas collaborative private voluntary
organizations and from foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated materials and
services totaled $9,476,641 for the year ended September 30, 2012, and are reflected as In Kind
Project Contributions on the Statement of Activities and In Kind Project Expenses on the
Statement of Functional Expenses.

These contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain full funding on
certain U.S. Agency for International Development grants. During the year ended September 30,
2012, the following donated materials and services received by JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. have been used to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

36346
36359
36514
36521
36528
36529
36622
36662

Ethiopia SNL

Nepal Family Health Program I
Liberia RBHS

Uganda STAR-EC

Nigeria Tship

Ghana Focus

New Hampshire STAR
Madagascar CBIHP

$

35,250
929,125
3,178,887
3,193,835
223,765
1,220,762

275,137
28,781

&

9,085,542
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Agency for International Development

Direct Grants:

36064 - Sudai Health Transformation SHTP 623-A-00-04-00042-00 98.001 Y (59,001)

36078 - Immunization Basics GHS-A-00-04-00004-00 98.001 (1,938)

36183 - Ukraine TFH 121-A-00-05-00709 98.001 250,185

36259 - Northern Central Uganda HIV 617-A-00-06-00009-00 98.001 4,636,459

36267 - Ukraine MIHP 11 121-A-00-06-00708-00 98.001 639,509

36359 - Nepal Family Health Program 1 367-A-00-08-00001-00 98.001 4,928,843

36514 - Liberia RBHS 669-A-00-09-00001-00 98.001 14,839,279

36521 - Uganda HIV/AIDS/TB 617-A-00-05-000067-00 $3.001 6,424,473

36528 - Nigeria TSHIP 620-A-00-09-00014-00 98.001 17,356,684

36529 - Ghana Focus 641-A-00-09-00030-00 98.001 7,505,555

36532 - Turkmenistan YC 120-A-00-09-00029-00 98.001 137,590

36648 - Pakistan TAUH 391-A-00-11-01214-00 98.001 1,212,588

36662 - Madagascar CBIHP 687-A-00-11-00013-00 98.001 4,267,557

36697 - SPRING OAA-A-11-00031 98.001 3,235,649

36702 - Nepal CHX Cord Care _OAA-A-11-00073 98.001 200,324

36747 - Ukraine HWUP 121-A-11-00003 98.001 1,011,567
Total Direct Grants 66,585,323

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Partnership for Supply Chain Management,

Inc. (PSCM): GPO-1-00-05-00032-00 98.001 36,564,848

36211/36344/36524 - Supply Chain Management System

Passed through World Education:

36591 - Tanzania OVC 64023-0556-1001 98.001 2,494

Passed through Family Health International (FHI):

36620 - Africa FHI Neglected Tropical Discase OAA-A-10-00050 98.001 355,094

Passed through University of California:

36666 - Malawi Program in Global Health 1560 G PBO10 98.001 29,121
Total Pass-through Grants 36,951,557
Total - CFDA #98.001 - USAID Foreign Assistance for Programs Overseas 103,536,880

Direct Grant:

36098 - Pakistan MNH Prog. Paimon 391-A-00-05-01037-00 98.004 _(68,542)
Total - CFDA #98.004 - Non-Governmental Organization Strengthening (NGO) __(68,542)
TOTAL - U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT s 103,468,338

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 15



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-tbrough CFDA Federal
Program Titie Number Number _Expenditures
US. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Pass-through Grants:

Passed through NACCHO:

36595 - NH MRC Conferences 2010-051013 93.008 1,407

36689 - NH MRC Conferences 2011-041218 93.008 9,255

Total CFDA #93.008 - Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 10,662
Dircet Grant:

36612 - Project HOPE MPPWH100030 93015 230,616

Total CFDA #93.015 - HIV Prevention Programs For Women 230,616
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:

36502 - Conference on Aging 102-500731 93.043 14,875

36741 - Injury Prevention 1022534 93.043 3,142
Total CFDA #93.043 - Special Programs for the Aging - Title VII, Chapter 2 18,017

Pass-through Graot:
Passed through Boston Medical Center:

36688 - ARRA - SHARE 2005 93.048 48,194
Total CFDA #93.048 - Special Programs for the Aging - Title IV and Title I1 _ 48,194

Direct Grants:

36535 - CDC - Botswana IS 5U2GPS001958-02 93.067 14,617

36536 - CDC - Botswana IS SU2GPS001958-03 93.067 230,819

36646 - CDC - Rwanda IS 5U2GPS001929-02 93.067 627

36746 - CDC - Rwanda IS 5U2GPS001929-03 93.067 891,465
Total Direct Grants 1,137,528

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Elizabeth Glaser Pediatric AIDS Foundation:

36761 - Mozambique TA - EGPAF CM-02-9-210-02833-5-00 93.067 33,338
Total Pass-through Grant 33,838
Total CFDA #93.067 - Global AIDS 1,171,366
Sub-Total 1,478,855

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 16




JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30,2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
US. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page b 1,478,855
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36681 - PH Prep FY 12 POH 1017180 93.069 147,834
Total CFDA #93.069 - Public Health Emergency Preparedaess 147,834
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36671 - NH Asthma Awareness Agreement @ 5-26-11 93.070 5,448
36729 - NH Asthma Awareness Agreement @ 1-11-12 93.070 4,104
Passed through Southern New Hampshire AHEC:
36755 - Asthma Plan Agreement @ 4-19-12 93.070 2,947
Total CFDA #93.070 - Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response 12,499
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of Colorado:
36733 - Colorado HIV Testing Plan Facilitation OEFHAEPI12000096 93.092 16,311
Passed through State of Oregon:
36778 - Cuidate TOT Training PO319976 93.092 7,297
Total CFDA #93.092 - Affordable Care Act Personal Responsibility Education Program 23,608
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.110 4,555
Total CFDA #93.110 - Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Program 4,555
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of Now Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.130 14,540
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36623 - Rural Health and Primary Care PO# 101440 93.130 20,934
Passed through State of Vermont:
36786 - Health Care Workforce Strategic Plan 22008 93.130 3479
Total CFDA #93.130 - Cooperative Agreements to States/Territories for the
Coordination and Development of Primary Care Offices 38,953
Sub-Total 1,706,304

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 17



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page s 1,706,304
Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.136 44,174
36741 - Injury Prevention 1022534 93.136 12,382

Total CFDA #93.136 - Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community
Based Programs 56,556

Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Health Research, Inc.:

36377 - HIVQual-1 Evaluation 333405 93.145 44,832
Passed through Elizabeth Glaser Pediatric AIDS Foundation:

36240 - Project Heart 2006 0201-43-024-06 93.145 31,409

Total CFDA #93.145 - AIDS Education and Training Centers 76,241

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Health Research, Inc.:
36691 - HIV/IQUAL - US 343805 93.153 116,894
Total CFDA #93.153 - Coordinated Services and Access to Research for Women, Infants and Youth . 116,894

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 18
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Graator Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page s 1,955,995
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Enterprise Services & Technologies, Inc.:
367065 - Famirian Daia Sysiems CO-12-006-01 93.217 15,741
Passed through Action for Boston Community Development, Inc.:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systemns PO# 69857 93.217 13,757
Passed through Planned Parenthood of Southern New England:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systeme Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 20,054
Passed through Planned Parenthood of Northern New England:
36765 - FamPlan Dats Systems Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 10,001
Passed through Health Imperatives, Inc.:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systems Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 5,821
Passed through Planned Parenthood League of Massachusetts:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systems Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 2,448
Passed through Health Quarters, Inc.:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systems Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 4,401
Passed through Planned Parenthood Association of Maine:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systems Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 12,800
Passed through Tapestry Health Systems:
36765 - FamPlan Data Systems Agreement - 7-1-12/2-28-13 93.217 s _4,309
Total CFDA #93.217 - Family Planning Services 89,372
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.236 2,954
Total CFDA #93.236 - Grants to States to Support Oral Health Worldorce Activities 2,954
Sub-Total 2,048,321

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 19



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page s 2,048,321
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36489 - NH Center 4 Excellence 1003181 93.243 299,134
Pasged through Span, Inc.:
36452 - Span Evalusation 1H79T1020332-02 93.243 22,289
Passed through Institute for Health & Recovery:
36619 - IHR - RENW Eval Agreement @ 10-27-10 93.243 73,150
Passed through Action for Boston Community Development, Inc.:
36699 - Entra Nosotras PO# 68767 93.243 19,958
Total - CFDA #93.243 - Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional and National Significance 414,531
Direct Grants:
36411 - Family Planning Personnel Training - Region VI FPTPA080012 93.260 843,409
36416/36417 - Family Planning Personnel Training - Reg. | FPTPA010002 93.260 461,227
36418 - Family Planning Data System FPTPA010002 93.260 181,821
36777 - Natior Training Center - Quality Assurance, Quality
Improvement, Evaluation FPTPA006025-01-00 93.260 2,494
36787 - Reproductive Health Prevention Training and Technical
Assistance FPTPA006015-01-00 93.260 8,169
Total - CFDA #93.260 - Family Planning - Personnel Training 1,497,120
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36593 - NH Immun. Marketing 1009138 93.268 118,661
Total CFDA #93.268 - Immunlzation Cooperative Agreements 118,661
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Monadnock Alcoho! & Drug Abuse Coalition:
36748 - TAP Keene 2012 Agreement @ 4-23-12 93.276 5,543
Passed through We've Got Your Back:
36749 - TAP Winchester 2012 Agreement @ 4-5-12 93.276 3,648
Total CFDA #93.276 - Drug-free Communities Support Program Grants 9,191
Sub-Total 4,087,824
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page 1 4,087,824
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.283 9,206
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36673 - TATS 1018535 93.283 289,749
Passed through National Network of Public Health Institutes:
36738 - Community Guide 2 C319 93.283 13,742
Passed through Dartmouth College:
36744 - DH Cancer FG Agreement @ 4-26-12 93.283 5,840
Passed through State of Vermont:
36745 - Oral Health Plan 21627 93.283 19,230
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36753 - NAP SACC Services 1022980 93.283 15,513
Passed through National Network of Public Health Institutes
36759 - HFHP Policy C423 93.283 6,136
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36768 - Coordinated Chronic Disease Prevention PO# 1024694 93.283 35,943
Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Dept. of Public Health:
36157 - CDC and Prevention Investigations and Technical Assistance ~ INTF-4971-M04603614082 93.283 187,493
36157 - Investigations and Technical Assist. INTF-4971-M04603614082 93.283 89,484
36421 - Investigations and Technical Assist. INTF-2915-M04900315005 93.283 127,865
Total - CFDA #93.283 - Centers for Discase Control and Prevention -
lnvestigations and Techuical Assistance . _800,201
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Black Ministerial Alliance of Greater Boston, Inc.:
36664 - Healthy Futures Agreement @ 6-1-11 93.297 203,796
36718 - Spanish Translation Agreement @ 12-1-11 93.297 1,070
36750 - Healthy Futures Health Education Agreement @ 4-20-12 93.297 4,383
Total - CFDA #93.297 - Teenage Pregnancy Prevention Program 209,749
Sub-Total 5,097,774
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page s 5,097,774
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.458 9,287
Total - CFDA #93.458 - CDC - Division of Nutrition, Physical Activity and Obesity 9,287
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36767 - Public Health Partner Feedback PO# 1024222 93.507 3,404
Passed through State of Connecticut:
36732 - Planning and Workforce Development 2012-0197 93.507 24,689
Total - CFDA #93.507 - PPHF 2012 National Public Health Improvement Initiative 28,093
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of Vermont:
36735 - Healthcare Workforce Plan Agreement @ 2-21-12 93.509 6,005
Total - CFDA #93.509 - Affordable Care Act State Health Care Workforce Development Grants 6,005
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.520 5693
36673 - TATS 1018535 93.520 40,114
Total - CFDA #93.520 - Centers for Discase Control and Prevention - Affordable
Care Act Communities Putting Prevention to Work . 45,807
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Town of Hudson, Massachusetts:
36754 - MetroWest Moves Agreement @ 5-9-12 93.531 23,151
Total - CFDA #93.531 - PPHF 2012 - Community Trausition Grants 23,151
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36751 - Environmental Public Health Tracking PO# 1022633 93.538 60,411
Total - CFDA #93.538 - Affordable Core Act - Nat'l Environmental Public Health Tracking Program 60,411
Sub-Total 5,270,528
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
] Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page 5,270,528
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Early Learmning New Hampshire:
36780 - ARKA - Spark NH Assessment Agreement @ 8-30-i2 93.708 5,783
Total - CFDA #93.708 - ARRA - Head Start 5,783
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State.of New Hampshire:
36649 - ARRA - NH HAI Validation 1015154 93.717 9,137
Total - CFDA #93.717 - ARRA - Preventing Healthcare-Associated Infections 9,137
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36584 - ARRA - NH Quitline 1007769 93.723 63,782
36594 - ARRA - Tob/Obes 1009915 93.723 143,153
Passed through State of Rhode Island:
36645 - ARRA - Rl Quitline 3212655 93.723 118,690
36716 - ARRA - Healthy Piaces Survey PO# 3257893 93.723 84,436
Total - CFDA #93.723 - ARRA - Prevention & Wellness - States, Territories and Pacific 1slaads 410,061
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Boston Public Health Commission:
36604 - ARRA - BPHC Quitline PO# 21100745/21201308/21201567 93.724 227,633
36719 - ARRA - Tobacco Control Initiative PO# 3262608 93.724 31,723
Total - CFDA #93.724 - ARRA - Prevention & Wellness - Communities Putting
Prevention to Work Funding Opportunities Announcement (FOA) 259,356
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of Colorado:
36628 - Federally Qualified Health Centers & Rural Health Clinics 3111-0159 93.767 5,141
36740 - Facilitation PO PC-UHA-MPO012000050 93.767 6,407
Total - CFDA #93.767 - Childrea's Health Insurance Program 11,548
Sub-Total 5,966,413
See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 23
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page 5,966,413
Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

36681 - PH Prep FY12 PO# 1017180 93.889 77,773
Total - CFDA #93.889 - Nationa! Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 77,773

Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of Rhode Island:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.913 24,458
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36623 - Rural Health and Primary Care PO# 1011440 93.913 10,643
Total - CFDA #93.913 - Grants to States for Operation of Offices of Rural Health 35,101
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Boston Public Health Commission:
36453 - BPHC Quality Management 6307A 93.914 179,900
Total - CFDA #93.914 - HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 179,900
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Dept. of Public Health:

HIV Care Formula Grants INTF-4971-M04603614082 93917 420,297
Total - CFDA #93.917 - HIV Care Formula Grants 420,297

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Dept. of Public Health:

Special Projects of National Significance INTF-4971-M04603614082 93.928 4,008
Total - CFDA #93.928 - Special Projects of National Significance 4,008

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Albuquerque AAIHB:

36728 - Lorz Cuidate AAIHB 12-05 93.933 3,808
Total - CFDA #93.933 - Demonstration Projects for Indian Health 3,808
Sub—Totai 6,687@0

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 24
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Graator/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Total from previous page H 6,687,300
Direct Grant:
36487 - CDC CBA Project U65PS001661 93.939 668,718
Totai - CFDA #93.939 - HIV Prevention Activities - NGO Based 668,718
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of
Public Health:
HIV Prevention Activities INTF-4971-M04603614082 93.940 51,913
Total - CFDA #93.940 - HIV Prevention Activities - Health Department Based 51,913
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Denver Public Health:
36734 - Federal Training Center Collaboration Agreement @ 3-21-12 93.941 5470
Total - CFDA #93.941 - HIV Demonstration, Research, Public and Professional Educ. Projects ~ 5,470
Direct Graat:
36306 - MMIS - CDC U62/CCU124534-034 93.943 _(2,261)
Total - CFDA #93.943 - Epldemiologic Research Studies of A1Ds and HIV (2,261)
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Dept. of Public Health:
HIV/AIDS Surveillance INTF-4971-M04603614082 93.944 40,185
Total - CFDA #93.944 - HIV/AIDs Surveillance _40,185
Direct Grant:
36615 - CDC Teen Pregnancy U58DP002906 93.946 489,720
Total - CFDA #93.946 - Cooperative Agreements to Support State-Based Safe Motherhood
and Infant lnitiative Programs 489,720
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Georgetown University
36435 - IRH Research Project RX4270-810-JS1 93.974 _10,186
Total - CFDA #93.974 - Family Planning - Service Delivery Improvement Research Grants 10,186
Sub-Total 7,951,231
See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 25



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Yecar Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-tbrough Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEATH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED
Sub-Totsal from previous page s 7,951,231
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 93.994 74,341
Passed through State of Vermont:
36730 - Family Planning Needs 21230 93.994 3,989
Total - CFDA #93.994 - Maternal & Child Heslth Services Block Grant to the States 78,330
Direct Contracts:
36424 - OWH Support HHS-P233200800647P 93.HHS-P233
200800647P 4,460
36596 - 2010 COD Conference HHS-P233201000426P 93.HHS-P233
201000426P (2,499)
36656 - Culture of Data 2011 HHS-P233201100246P 93.HHS-P233
201100246P 11,163
36696 - HAI Logistics Support HHS-P233201100600P 93.HHS-P233
201100600P 54272
36707 - State Health Officer - Region 7 HHS-P233201100656P 93.HHS-P233
201100656P 5,206
36708 - State Health Officer - Region 8 HHS-P233201100526P 93.HHS-P233
201100526P 3,940
Total Direct Contracts 76,632
TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES S 8,106,193
See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 26
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
US. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Grants:
United States Coast Guard -
35962 - Nat'l. Estimate of Life Jacket Wear Rate 1002.11/1102.14 97.012 $ 352,096
36757 - Nat'l. Estimate of Life Jacket Wear Rate 3311FAN1202.03 97.012 140,725
TOTAL - US. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY -
Total CFDA #97.012 - Boating Safety Financial Assistaoce b 492,821
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Pass-through Grant:
Passed through State of New Hampshire: .
36501 - Epidemiology/Public Health Data 3160295 66.472 S 6,338
Total CFDA #66.472 - Beach Monitoring and Notification Program
Implementation Grants 6,338
Direct Grant:

36698 - Children's Health CH-83510601 66.609 46,682
Total CFDA #66.609 - Protection of Children From Environmental Health Risks 46,682
TOTAL - U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY s 53,020

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 27



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Agency or Federsl
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Graantor Pass-through CFDA Federal
Program Title Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36616 - Scacoast Youth Services 10-DJIS-0JIDO-15 16.540 S 8272
Total - CFDA #16.540 - Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention -
Allocation to States 8,272
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36641 - Adult Drug Court 2010DC01 16.585 $ 5,015
Total - CFDA #16.585 - Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 5015
Passed through State of New Hampshire:
36650 - Family Based Residential Substance Abuse Treatment 201FB02 16.812 4,692
36725 - Second Chances Act Demonstration Project 2010FB02 16.812 8,067
Total - CFDA #16.812 - Second Chance Act Prisoner Re-entry Initiative 12,759
TOTAL US. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE S 26,046

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

$__ 112,146,418
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
September 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30, 2012. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not intended to and
does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.

OTE 2
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained

in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers are presented when
available.

NOTE 3 ~ SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows:

CFDA Amount Provided
Program Number to Subrecipients
USAID Foreign Assistance for Programs Overseas 98.001 $ 21,090,664
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 41,933
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 93.243 34,033
Family Planning - Personnel Training 93.260 32,672
ARRA - Prevention and Wellness-State,

Territories and Pacific Islands 93.723 24,241
Protection of Children from Environmental Health Risks 66.609 18,750
Family Planning - Improvement Research Grants 93.974 7,600
Disease Control and Prevention 93.283 8,600
Total Federal Awards Provided to Subrecipients $ 21,258,493
Non-Federal Awards Provided to Subrecipients 3,164,366

b 24,422,859

The federal expenditures provided to subrecipients is reflected in the sub-contracts line item of
the schedule of functional expenses.
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- PHONE: 781-934-0460
FQUGIERE FAX: 781-934-0606

NORMAN R. FOUGERE, JR. CPA
99 HERITAGE LANE
DUXBURY, MA 02332-4334

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 9, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

30



Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined previously.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc.’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee,
Board of Directors, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

g w <A

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 9, 2013
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NORMAN R. FOUGERE, JR. CPA - PHONE: 781-934-0460
99 HERITAGE LANE FOUGERE FAX: 781-934-0606

DUXBURY, MA 02332-4334 N

intant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors of
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Compliance

We have audited JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s (a nonprofit organization)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2012. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements.
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In our opinion, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the

ta that ~Anndd L :

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal progran: (o
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors,
others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/AQ/%NM/

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 9, 2013
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
September 30, 2012

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc.

No significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements of
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc. were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed during the audit of the
major federal award programs of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. expresses an unqualified opinion on all major
federal programs.

There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in this schedule in accordance
with Sec. 510 (a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major programs included:

Agency Program Title CFDA. #
Agency for International Development USAID Foreign Assistance
for Programs Overseas 98.001 (Cluster)

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $3,000,000.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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NORMAN R. FOUGERE, Jr. CPA - s PHONE: 781-934-0460
99 HERITAGE LANE FOUGERE

FAX: 781-934-0606
DUXBURY, MA 02332-4334 9%

Certified Pui)]ic

Accountant

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'’S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no reportable findings or questioned costs for the year ended September 30, 2012.
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ELIZABETH G. HOUDE
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' "SUMMAR

Proven nonprofit leader with more than 25 years of experience in agency/project management and community collaboration. In
addition to providing strategic leadership for nonprofits and community coalitions, | am skilled in public speaking and writing, and
committed to personal and professional growth. Further, { have built a cadre of connections in New Hampshire and around the
country through leadership roles and through being selected as a fellow with the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation.

NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP

Community Health Institute, Bow, NH, 2013 - present. Consultant. Subcontracted to help develop a Center for
Excellence in Court Diversion engaging community stakeholders, developing learning community and implementing
evaluation and sustainability strategies to ensure on-going quality of court diversion programs in New Hampshire.

[ V- v o et AN I RS

The Youth Council, Nashua, NH, 1996 - present . Executive Director. Revitalized 23-year-old nonprofit to become
premiere youth-serving agency in greater Nashua, NH, offering innovative intervention and treatment programs for
children, teens and families. Introduced outcome measures, evidence-based practices and business process
improvements and developed numerous collaborative relationships with area schools, police and other nonprofits.

Merrimack Safeguard, 2010 — present. Project Director. Appointed to lead assessment, capacity building and
planning for community coalition through Drug Free Communities grant. Spearheaded development of logic model
and action plan following federal guidelines, and facilitated coalition infrastructure development including volunteer
leadership, by law creation and branding. Developed system tools to promote accountability and follow-through.

NH Teen Institute, 2007 - 2010. Executive Director, Facilitated sustainability of 24-year-old nonprofit. Revitalized
mission, introduced evidence-based practice, spearheaded shift to the next developmental stage. Facilitated board
transition, policies and practices toward heightened accountability. Transitioned to new leadership in January 2011,

STATE-LEVEL APPOINTMENTS

Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drdgs. Public Member. 2001 — present. Appointed to serve in an
advisory capacity regarding the delivery of effective and coordinated substance abuse prevention, intervention,
treatment and recovery services. Executive Committee member. Chair, Prevention Task Force, 2010 — present.

Reclaiming Futures. Advisory Board. 2002 — 2007. Appointed to NH.District Court’s initiative to (:onnecf courts,
communities and substance-involved youth. Reviewed best practices toward developing coordinated system of care.

New Futures. 2001 —- 2005. Member, Board of Directors, 2001 - 2003. Appointed to board of nonbroﬁt devoted to
policy and programming toward reducing underage drinking and increasing access to treatment. Served on Executive
Committee. Invited to join National Advisory Board of Adolescent Treatment Initiative in 2004.

Endowment for Health. 1999 — 2002. Appointed by Attorney General as founding board member of $85million
health care conversion foundation. Served on steering committee, named co-chair of first Program Development
Committee, and as board liaison to grant review team recommending $2.5million of initial grant awards.

PERSONAL & PROFESSIONAL GROWTH

CADCA National Coalition Academy, training completed February 2011.

Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Developing Leadership in Reducing Substance Abuse. Fellow. 2002 - 2006.
Selected as one of 10 emerging leaders for investment toward building personal and professional leadership skills.
Interviewed colleagues and wrote book entitled Leaders Unmasked: A Celebration of Guts and Grace as final project.

Project Connect, a Robert Wood Johnson initiative to train emerging leaders to work with elected officials, 2003.

Radiant Communication Strategies, a consultative training to develop communications skills, 2002.
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Rotary Club of Nashua West. Member, 1997 - present. President, 2013-14. Board of Directors 2008 — present.
Membership chair 2007- 2012. Volunteer Coordinator 2004 — present; Special Projects chair 2005 — 2007;

United Way of Greater Nashua. 1996 — present. Outcome Measures (1997), Management Assistance {1998) and
Community Needs Assessment {1999, 2002, 2004, 2007, 2009, 2013).

Merrimack Drug Advisory Council/Merrimack Safeguard. 1996 — 2010. Active member of community collaboration
preventing aicohol and other drug problems. Appointed as project director for Drug Free Communities Grant in 2010.
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Chamber of Commerce, 1999.
Network. Nashua, NH. 1993 - 1997.

Nashua Mayor’s Task Force on Youth. 1997 — 2002. Lz

-
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1993 - 1996. Served on Family-Focused Working Group
comprised of leaders in family- centered care from
Child Welfare Advisory Board. 1997—-2000. around the country. Contributed two articles to CWLA’s
Mapping a New Direction Resource Guide.

HONORS & AWARDS

Nashua Telegraph, 2013. Named one of Greater Nashua’s 25 Extraordinary Women.

»
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Rivier College Counseling Advisory Board. 1993 - 2000.

Rotary Club of Nashua West, 2006. Paul Harris Fellow contribution, Award of Excellence, Creative Idea award.
Community Champion, 2002. WMUR and Citizens Bank.

New Hampshire Children’s Trust Fund, ZOO0.0utstanding management in program evaluation.

Commendation NH Governor Jeanne Shaheen,1999. Excellence in leadership on behalf of children and families.

Rivier College Annual Counseling Award,1999. Distinguished contributions to students and the community.

‘ OTHER EXPERIENCE

Empty Nest Glassworks/Small Business Owner. Lampwork Artist, 2008 — present. Skilled in hand-melting glass gifts
and jewelry using oxygen/propane torch and glass rods. Facebook fan page has grown to over 140 members.

Nashua Children’s Home, Nashua, New Hampshire, 1983-1996. Director of Program Management /Community
Relations. 1993-1996. Promoted to created positions to implement family-centered philosophy in residential and
home-based programs. Presented at workshops from Boys Town to Washington, DC on family-centered practices.
Clinical Experience 1983-1993. Counseled children, teens and families struggling with abuse, neglect, behavioral
difficulties and emotional handicaps. Served as Family Program Supervisor, Therapist and Residential Counselor.

EDUCATION
Master of Arts in Counseling, with distinction. Rivier University, Nashua, New Hampshire, 1990.

Bachelor of Arts, cum laude. Connecticut College, New London, Connecticut, 1983. Majors: Sociology-Based Human
Relations and Child Development. Dean’s List, American Association of University Women Award.



SARAH E. MOECKEL

4_@ smoeckel@jsi.com

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, DURHAM
Bachelor of Arts, Politics and Society, 2012

EXPERIENCE

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Associate, March 2013 to present

NH Department Child Youth and Families, Juvenile Court Diversion Center for Excellence, March 2013 to present
Provide project support to the New Hampshire Division of Children, Youth and Families Bureau of Juvenile Justice to
create the Juvenile Court Diversion Center for Excellence. The primary goal of this three-year project is to educate
policymakers on: the efficacy of court diversion; the core elements and best practices of court diversion that are integral
to efficacy; and best practice strategies to initiate and sustain court diversion programs in New Hampshire. JSI will use
its experiences in public and community health improvement as well as technical experts from the field of practice in
court diversion to conduct meetings with policymakers; develop effective manuals and materials for use in promoting,
implementing and sustaining court diversion; institute communication channels and a technical assistance delivery
system to support a learning community of practitioners; and through these efforts increase knowledge and action
relative to expanded, effective court diversion practice in New Hampshire.

Manchester Department of Public Health, Manchester Neighborhood Health Improvement Strategy,

June 2013 to present

Provide project support, facilitation, and logistics coordination to Manchester Department of Public Health in six
community forums with community stakeholders and leaders in creation of a Neighborhood Health Improvement
Strategy (NHIS). Summarizationof Data, Data Collection, Support of data coding, and facilitation and support of NHIS
conference.

NH Department of Public Health, Department of Health and Human Services, 2013 NH HIV Needs Assessment,
August 2013 to present

Provide project support on project logistics, booking meetings, and meeting minutes. Support of creation content and
document editing with regard to Resource Inventory section of the 2013 NH HIV Needs Assessment, under the direction
of project director, and collaboration of JSI Boston during a two year period. Reporting of deliverables, and project
updates to NHDHHS, Department of Public Health.

NH Department of Health and Human Services, Partnerships for Quitline Sustainability, Tobacco Prevention and
Control Program, September 2013 to present

Provide logistics, meeting coordination, and general note taking support to the NH Quitline contract and subcontract
meetings. '

PRIOR EXPERIENCE

Office of Governor John Lynch-Office of Citizen Services, Concord, New Hampshire

Legislative Intern, 2012

Conducted data entry and analysis for the Office of Citizen Services in its role as constituent based support for policy initiatives.
Tracked, cataloged, and reported on legislation of interest to the Governor and his policy staff, in both NH’s House of
Representatives, and Senate. Completed Capstone Research Project as part of the Internship on political gerrymandering and its
political consequences over the next decade, with particular attention paid to NH Senate redistricting SB 201, and HB 592.

University of New Hampshire-Thompson School of Applied Science, Durham/Manchester, New Hampshire

Project Manager, 2010-2011

Acted as Project Manager on the Community Leadership program’s warm clothing initiative, Warmth from the Mitlyard; a warm
clothing donation match program for social service agencies and donors. Sole management of the project’s largest donor, NH
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Lions Club. Scope of work included oversight of Volunteer NH’s online database for use in donation facilitation, coordination of
events, and overall project support, and development for NH Lions donation of 10,000 plus warm clothing items. Secured NH
Lions as a continued and indefinite donor. Worked as Project Support Liaison for Warmth’s Reading Makes a Difference
Program, which facilitated reading projects with 21* Century at-risk learners in two NH locations: Beech St. School, Manchester
and Somersworth Youth Safe Haven, Somersworth, NH.

AFFILIATIONS

Membership Committee Co-Chair, New Hampshire Public Health Association, August 2013-Present

COMPUTER SKILLS

Proficient in Adobe Acrobat, Microsoft Office applications, and SPSS.
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RACHEL S. KOHN, MSW, MPH
W‘ rkohn@jsi.com

EDUCATION

SCHOOL OF THE MUSEUM OF FINE ARTS, BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Graphic Design Certificate, December, 2008

BOSTON UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
M.P.H., Epidemiology, September, 1998

BOSTON UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK, BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS
MS.W., Macro Social Work, May, 1997

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS, AMHERST, MASSACHUSETTS
B.A., Social Thought and Political Economy, May, 1989

EXPERIENCE

Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire

JSY, Boston, Massachusetts

Senior Consultant, November 1998 to present

Areas of technical expertise include: project management; needs assessment; program evaluation; survey research design and
administration; technical assistance for program-level and client-level program implementation; all aspects of qualitative and
quantitative data collection and management; grant writing, and report writing and dissemination. Content expertise includes
evidence-base strategies to address substance abuse prevention and treatment; treatment drug courts; and prisoner reentry
programs. These technical skills are complimented by extensive experience in graphic design with a focus on data v1suahzatlon
and health communication strategies.

Program Evaluation and Needs Assessment projects:

Current Projects:
New Hampshire Department of Children, Youth & Families — Juvenile Court Diversion Center for Excellence

Project Director — Lead the development of a Juvenile Court Diversion Center for Excellence which aims to educate
policymakers on the efficacy; core elements and best practices; and best practice strategies to initiate and sustain court

diversion programs.

Cheshire County — Cheshire County Drug Court

Project Director — Oversee the development of an evaluation protocol, data management systems and periodic evaluation
reports for the SAMHSA/CSAT-funded Cheshire County Drug Court (CCDC). In parallel, implement a Department of
Justice Bureau of Justice Assistance-funded cost-benefit analysis of the CCDC using the Transactional and Institutional
Cost Analysis approach along with a quasi-experimental study design to compare outcome result between participants and
comparable peers.

Keystone Hall — Family-Based Prisoner Substance Abuse Treatment Program

Evaluator — Development and implementation of a process and outcome evaluation plan and customized MS Access data
_collection system for a Bureau of Justice Assistance-funded trauma informed-treatment and re-entry case management

program for incarcerated women in five New Hampshire county correctional facilities.

Institute for Health and Recovery — Project RENEW

Evaluation Advisor -SAMHSA/CSAT-funded Re-Entry Network for Empowering Women project (RENEW).
Responsibilities include evaluation design, training of program staff in monitoring, evaluation and data reporting, and
analysis and presentation of evaluation data.

Dover Youth to Youth — One Voice Youth Empowerment Model

Work with the Dover Youth to Youth, innovators of the One Voice Youth Empowerment Model, to establish evidence of
program effectiveness. Evaluation enhancement efforts were funded by Center for Substance Abuse Prevention’s Center
for the Application of Prevention Technologies (CAPT) Service-to-Science program in preparation for submission to the
National Registry of Evidence-base Programs and Practices (NREPP).

Community-Based Coalition Evaluation

Evaluator — Provide evaluation services for local substance abuse prevention coalitions and Drug-Free Community
Grantees including evaluation plans, membership surveys, collecting and reporting national outcome measures using
YRBS or comparable data sources, and local strategy/activity program evaluation.
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Other Recent Projects:

Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment — Seacoast Youth Services

Evaluator — Seacoast Youth Services OJJDP-funded Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment program targeting high-risk
youth and Project Adventure, a behavior modification program that uses proactive strategies to provide alternatives to high
risk behaviors. Designed a utilization-focused evaluation plan and tools for multiple programs provided by SYS.

NH Tobacco & Obesity Policy Project

Evaluator for implementing high-impact public policy in the domains of licensed child care settings and public schools.
TOPP evaluation activities included an annual needs assessment and survey of licensed childcare providers, evaluation of a
3-module training protocol, and an assessment of public school wellness policy adoption and implementation.

Assertive Adolescent Family Treatment — Cohort 2 & 3

Evaluator - SAMHSA/CSAT-funded Assertive Adolescent Family Treatment (AAFT-2 & -3) for Child & Family
Services Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Program, a program designed to provide substance abuse treatment
services New Hampshire adolescents in Merrimack, Hillsborough and western Rockingham counties.

NH Immunization Marketing

Evaluator for the NH Immunization Program health marketing campaign that identified priority audiences, best-practice
outreach strategies, partner communication channels and effective educational outreach materials to advance the
understanding of the health benefits of vaccines and immunizations.

Legacy Foundation Low Income Smokers

TCaralis mnAd diconminatiam ~ £ an innAaundiva 1
Evaluation and disscmination of an innovative 2- yoar yu\u St‘uuy des:gned to enroll low income smokers into Smcklﬂg

cessation quitlines through financial services or workplace transition educational settings using the Ask, Advise, Refer
approach with current smokers and help them to identify the financial implications of smoking tobacco.

New Hampshire Strategic Prevention Framework State incentive Grant

Providing local evaluation services and technical support to two regional coalitions implementing the New Hampshire
SPF-SIG assessment, planning and implementation process to address underage and binge drinking among youth and
young adults in each region.

CAB Health and Recovery Services, Inc.

Evaluator — Provide evaluation and data management services for multiple SAMHSA/CSAT-funded substance abuse
treatment and prevention programs including: MET/CBT-5; Essex County Juvenile Drug Court; Young Offenders Reentry
Program; Women RISE; and Protect Encounter.

Youth Vision
Consultant — Conducted a needs assessment and gap analysis of youth between the ages of 16 to 25 who are currently, or at
one time, received out-of-home care through the Manchester NH district office.

NH Fit WIC

Evaluation Consultant — Developed an evaluation plan for the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,
Nutrition and Health Promotion Section NH Fit WIC Program. Framed by a utilization-focused evaluation deign that
incorporated input from all stakeholders of the NH Fit WIC Program.

New Hampshire State Incentive Grant

Local Evaluator Liaison for three of twelve funded community coalitions funded under the State Incentive Program to
implement evidence based models of substance abuse prevention with youth. Interventions range from school based
educational, support and prevention programs to those focused on strengthening families. Responsible for assessment of
the capacity of each coalition to implement an evaluation of prevention interventions.

Selected Environmental Health projects:
NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program Data Utilization and Outreach Project
Project Director for the New Hampshire DHHS Environmental Public Health Tracking program to assess the current
communication plan, evaluate the target audience needs, create a user feedback process and develop an outreach plan in
order to increase the utilization on EPHT’ electronic database and communication tools.

Prairie Grove Health Study

Project Director for study designed to assess current and historical health exposure and status of children diagnosed with
cancer living in Prairie Grove, Arkansas. Ata collected included extensive residential, occupational and health histories of
the children and families involved in a legal case against local chicken feed industry. The investigation was designed to
review the higher than expected rates of childhood cancers which may be linked to exposure to inorganic arsenic found in
chicken litter spread on farmland surrounding the town.
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NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program Planning

Project management for the New Hampshire DHHS Environmental Public Health Tracking program development of and
implementation plan for a comprehensive tracking and surveillance system. Over seeing Advisory Council and workgroup
coordination and facilitation, public health workforce assessment, environmental policy review, and one-day conference
planning and facilitation.

New Hampshire Biomonitoring Planning Grant

Facilitator for the development of a plan for a human biomonitoring program for the New Hampshire Department of
Health & Human Services, Office of Community and Public Health, Public Health Laboratories. Coordinated the Mercury
Biomonitoring work group to develop and implement a human biomonitoring program for Mercury exposure among
populations at risk in New Hampshire.

Mobile Bay Mercury Study

Project Director for study designed to determine if Mobile County residents have higher levels of mercury in their bodies
and whether their exposure to mercury came from eating fish contaminated with mercury. The goals of the study are to
verify previous findings of mercury contamination detected in the area and to determine if there is variation within the
levels and rates of exposure to mercury across the county.

Weymouth Community Health Assessment

Project manager for Weymouth Community Needs Assessment designed to identify unmet health needs in the Town and
devise a plan to decrease risk factors that are preventable for respiratory illness, mental illness, high risk behaviors,
cardiovascular disease, home accidents, and potential environmental exposures from the South Weymouth Naval Air
Station.

Toms River Health Status Assessment

Project Director for study designed to assess current and historical health status of children and mothers in Toms River,
New Jersey by collecting extensive residential, occupational and health histories of families involved in a class action case
against local industry. The investigation was designed to review the higher than expected rates of childhood cancers which
were suspected of being linked to local industry and contamination of air as and water sources. Findings from this study
contributed to a substantial settlement awarded to the families.

Cape Cod Women’s Health Study

Coordination of survey research component of environmental and behavioral implications on breast cancer and disease
prevalence on Cape Cod. Established remote office location in Hyannis where the telephone interviews are conducted.
Interviewer recruitment, training and management, instrument design, implementation and data management between
Hyannis and Boston office.

Selected Graphic Design projects:
Annual Public Health Conference Posters and Materials

New Hampshire Immunization Program
Prevention Research Center at Dartmouth
United Ways of the Greater Seacoast: State of the Seacoast Report

Delamano

Berkshire Medical Center Diabetes Education Brochure: Hospital to Home
Legacy Foundation Tobacco Education Training Manuals

Tools from the Field: Participant-Centered Techniques for Effective Training
New Hampshire Public Health Networks (NH PHN)

Creating Positive Change Coalition

Northern Strafford County Health and Safety Council

ASSOCIATIONS | BOARDS
National Association of Drug Court Professionals; American Evaluation Association, Amesbury Cultural Council.

COMPUTER SKILLS
Adobe CS6 Professional Suite: [llustrator, Photoshop, InDesign, Flash, Dreamweaver; MS Office Suite: Word, Excel, Publisher,
Access; SPSS; Social Network Applications.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
NH DHHS RFP#13-DHHS-DCYF-01

Key Personnel

|
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from J
this Contract | this Contract
rRacheI Kohn Project Director $85,500.00 | 26% $22,487.59
| Sarah Moecke! Project Associate $37,000.00 | 26% $9,652.17
Betsy Houde Consultant $55/hour (sub- | 28 $18,000.00
contracted; not | hours/month

salaried)




